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Trustees' Report
The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report
of the charitable company for the period from 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual
report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

Structure, Governance and Management
Governance of the Multi Academy Trust (MAT) operates at 3 levels:
1 - Members
2 - Trustees of the MAT
3 - Local governing bodies
Constitution
The MAT is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The company’s articles of
association are its primary governing documents. The members of the academy trust are Catch22
Charity Limited (represented by Terry Duddy, Chair of the Board of Catch22), The CEO of Catch22,
Chris Wright and Gita North, an independent trustee of Catch22.
A formal sponsor agreement between Catch22 Charity and The Catch22 Multi Academies Trust
setting out the relationships, specific interests and responsibilities of both parties is in place. This
will be reviewed annually to ensure it remains fit for purpose in meeting the needs of both
organisations.
The trustees of the academy trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law. The charitable company is known as Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited.
Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative
Details on page 3.
Members’ Liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.
Trustee Indemnities
The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA),
an alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme
protects trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring
whilst on academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000.
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Trustees' Report (continued)
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The Board reviews its effectiveness continually, looking at the skills and performance of trustees.
When new trustees are to be appointed, the board will agree at that time an appropriate process
and criteria for the recruitment based on the skill and capability requirements of the board,
governance and good practice for multi academy trusts, and the requirements of the company’s
governing documents.
Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
Trustees are briefed regularly by the executive team on educational development areas such as
DFE policy updates on the Academies Handbook and other academy matters through board
meetings which are held 4 times a year and by circulating appropriate papers including those from
the DFE & ESFA.
They are all individuals with experience of education and business management in other
organisations. Induction for new trustees will be reviewed at the time according to their experience
and knowledge.
Trustees undertake mandatory training for:
1. Health and Safety
2. Safeguarding
3. Trustee governance and responsibilities.
4. Data Protection
The effectiveness of the trustees will be assessed annually based on the Academies Handbook
guidance and the 21 defined criteria.
Key functions of the trustees and board are:
1. Setting MAT strategy
2. Agreeing the annual strategic plan for the MAT
3. Approving individual academies' plans
4. Financial oversight and accountability
5. Appointing the CEO & approving the appointment of Head teachers
Local Governing Bodies (LGBs)
Each Academy within the MAT has and will have a local governing body that will hold the MAT to
account in ensuring their academy benefits from the oversight, investment and direction the MAT is
expected to provide. Local governing bodies work to a clear delegation scheme. Each governing
body is expected to have at least 9 governors including the chair and at least two parent governors.
Local governing body minutes are available on the relevant academy’s website. LGB chairs are
invited to meet MAT trustees annually and also have a termly meeting with the Chair of Trustees,
MAT CEO and CFO.
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Trustees' Report (continued)
Each LGB has an appointed linked Trustee who will attend LGB meetings on the trust’s board’s
behalf and report back into board meetings where appropriate.
Key local governing body functions include:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Admissions policy adherence
Annual performance reviews of staff
Attendance and progress of learners
Risk management at academy level
Community engagement

Organisational Structure
The academy trust was established in November 2012 at the instigation of Catch22 Charity Limited.
The role of the sponsor and that of the MAT are documented in a “Sponsor Agreement” which
outlines the relationships, roles, responsibilities, and services to be provided by the parties
There is a scheme of delegation in place which sets out what matters are reserved for the MAT and
what is delegated to the CEO/executive principal and senior management in the academies and
local governing bodies. This can be viewed on the MAT website https://www.catch22.org.uk/services/multi-academies-trust/.
Decisions reserved for the MAT board include (among others) recruiting the CEO, the vision and
ethos of the MAT and its Academies, strategic direction, performance and impact of the academies,
performance management of the CEO and approving the annual budgets.
Matters delegated to the CEO include (among others) developing and implementing an appropriate
curriculum, ensuring appropriate performance targets are set for Trust Leadership and Head
teachers and completing annual reviews.
The MAT board monitors progress and makes decisions on a quarterly basis through a board
meeting, the details of which are minuted and publicly available. Additionally, Trustees meet at least
annually to discuss strategy.
Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel is the responsibility of the
remuneration committee. In setting pay and remuneration they consider performance management
information and relevant benchmarks within the sector.
Trade Union Facility Time
No employees of the Trust were relevant trade union officials in the current or comparative year.
Connected Organisations including Related Party Relationships
The academy trust is connected to Catch22 Charity Limited and its subsidiaries by virtue of
employees and trustees of Catch22 Charity Limited being trustees of the academy trust.
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Trustees' Report (continued)
A key expectation is that the academy trust will benefit from these connections in terms of sharing
and developing educational expertise, referring academy trust pupils in the future to other Catch22
Charity services where this is appropriate and value for money, and sharing corporate services
where also appropriate and value for money.
Register of Interests
A register of pecuniary and organisational interests of all Trustees, Members and Executive Leaders
is publicly available on the MAT website to ensure no conflict of interest interferes with the business
of the board (https://www.catch-22.org.uk/services/multi-academies-trust/).

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims:
The specific object of the academy trust, as set out in detail in its governing articles, is to advance
for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom. In particular this is to be achieved through
the operation of alternative provision and specialist schools for those young people either excluded
or at risk of exclusion from mainstream provision.
Public Benefit
The trustees are aware of the Charity Commission guidance on public benefit and consider that the
company’s objectives and aims and plans for future activities are for the public benefit. In shaping
our objectives for the year and planning our activities, the trustees have considered the Charity
Commission’s guidance on public benefit, including the guidance ‘Public Benefit: running a charity
(PB2)’.
What the MAT provides
A school which is part of the Catch22 MAT can expect infrastructure support, improvement to
pastoral, therapeutic and mentoring provision, and greater focus on preparing young people for the
world of work. It will increase access to one-to-one and small group mentoring opportunities through
a mixture of off-site extracurricular events to improve learners’ self-esteem and self-confidence.
Academy leaders can expect to participate in high quality training and development, enhance their
commercial as well as business management skills, which sit along-side expertise in alternative and
specialist (SEMH/SLCN) education provision.
Academy staff can expect to work in an environment of progressive, supportive challenge providing
individuals with opportunities to increase their knowledge and skills & professional development.
The MAT will drive a culture which is one of:
Empowerment: High professional standards - rigorous and challenging both of ourselves
and others.
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Trustees' Report (continued)
Curiosity: Openness to change, innovation and continual learning from others’ best practice
and lessons learned. We are research and evidence-based in approach.
Compassion: Child-centric - supportive and non-judgemental of young people and each
other.
Collaboration: both within the MAT and across the wider sponsor organisation and
externally through strategic partnerships.

Strategic Report
Objectives, Strategies and Activities
Vision and Purpose:
Catch22’s Vision is to deliver better social outcomes through transforming public service through
the 3Ps:
Place - supporting people to find, retain, transition safely into homes and communities
Purpose - Working with people to achieve their purpose in education, employment or training
People - Building networks of people around individuals.

Our schools cater for young people aged 4-16 who are outside of mainstream education, many of
whom have troubled and challenging backgrounds. We embody our Vision in all we do to ensure
our young people are supported fully to achieve these goals.
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Our Education Mission is:
To enable young people to progress and succeed in sustained education, training or employment.
We do this through engaging young people positively with their purpose through learning and
future life aspirations. All our learners achieve positive outcomes, thrive and enjoy a quality
education that is delivered by skilled, passionate people with high expectations in a place that is
safe, high quality and appropriate.

Our Education Intent is focussed on four pillars:
1. Brilliant basics, magic moments. We model this by:
Supporting pupils to gain academic qualifications, experiences and the skills needed to
move successfully to the next stage in life.
Providing a values-based curriculum, working with pupils to build their spiritual, moral,
social, and cultural capital and personal development.
All our schools being Rights Respecting Schools (UNICEF RRSA)
2. Relationships. We model this by:
Knowing our pupils well, meeting their unique needs and harnessing their individual
strengths and talents in positive ways
Protecting and supporting our pupils to be safe and feel safe; both online and offline
Reaching every pupil and building bright futures in both their personal and professional
lives.
3. Things about you, built with you, are for you. We model this by:
Understanding pupils’ unique needs and helping them overcome their barriers to learning
Engaging young people with a broad and rich curriculum so they can realise their ambitions
Making our pupils’ voices heard and harness participation to benefit pupils and help our
schools to improve.
4. Unleash Greatness. We model this by:
Having high aspirations for our pupils so they leave us prepared for life in modern Britain
and the wider world.
Instilling belief in pupils so they can progress and succeed in education, training and
employment
Helping pupils thrive as individuals both as members of their school and the wider
community.
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Our Education Impact is targeted, monitored and evaluated through a series of consistent
impact measures linked to our education intent. Outcomes are reported as trends over time and
compared with Catch22 Family of Schools data and national benchmarks (where available).
Leaders focus systematically on monitoring and evaluating the quality of curriculum practice and
plan interventions for improvement to secure consistency of implementation, high expectations and
best possible outcomes.
Trust and school performance data relating to 2020/21 is available on request.
Quality of Education Impact is measured by:
Young people progress and succeed in sustained education, employment and training.
% of learners in sustained positive destination (EET) after 0, 3 (Oct), 6 (Feb), 12 (July) months
% of learners on pathway for positive destination (EET) on exit.
% of KS4 learners on pathway of accredited qualifications for English and Maths
% of KS4 learners on pathway of 5(+) appropriate accredited qualifications (including English & Maths)
% of learners achieving accredited qualification in English
% of learners achieving accredited qualification in Maths
% of learners achieving accredited qualifications in English and Maths
% of learners achieving 5+ accredited qualifications (including English & Maths)
No. of Qualifications entered
Average qualifications entered per learner
No. of qualifications achieved
Average qualifications achieved per learner
Pupils are engaged and make at least good progress (by following a 'fit for purpose'
curriculum).
% of curriculum practice evaluated as at least good.
% of learners making at least good progress in core subjects (academic flight path)
% learners achieving at least expected grades in core subjects (new metric)
Vulnerable group learners achieve at least the same level of progress as their peers
% vulnerable group learners making at least good progress in core subjects (academic flight path)
(LAC, PPG, Non-PPG, BAME, WBB,’ Most Able’)
% vulnerable group learners achieving at least expected grades in core subjects (new metric)

Behaviour and Attitudes Impact measured by:
Positive and consistent approach secured to pupil behaviour for learning.
No and % Whole School Place
No & % Whole School Purpose
No & % Whole School People
Restrictive Physical Intervention (RPI) No & % Pupils involved
Restrictive Physical Intervention (RPI) No & % Staff involved
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Trustees' Report (continued)
No and % of students excluded
% excluded sessions
No and % High/Medium/Low Risk Behaviour Incidents
(High/Medium/Low risk Behaviour categorised from standardised list classification)

Personal Development Impact measured by:
% Whole School Attendance
% Authorised attendance
% Unauthorised absence
% pupils with improved attendance from baseline (cumulative)
% pupils with decreased unauthorised attendance (cumulative)
% pupils with 95% or more attendance
% pupils L Code (punctuality)
% & no. pupils on part-time timetable
% & no. pupils returned to full-time timetable
% of students who have been excluded (cumulative)
Average length of each exclusion (sessions)
% of authorised absence which is E codes
% of students who ' feel safe' in school (pupil survey)
% of students who 'are safe & feel safe' in school

The Trust increased in size rapidly between 2017 and 2019 and with the opening of The Austen
Academy in this academic year the Trust is now comprised of 8 Academies:
Name

1.

The Ashwood
Academy

2.

The Burton
Academy

Type/Date
joined the
Trust
AP/
September
2014
AP/April
2017

3.

The Brunel
Academy

SEMH/April
2017

Age
Capacity
Range/Number
on Roll (NOR)
11-16
62
NOR 50

Date of last
inspection

Inspection
Outcome

June 2017

Good

11-16
NOR 45

56

February
2020

Requires
Improvement
(previously
Inadequate)

11-16
NOR 50

56

Last
inspection
February
2020

Requires
Improvement
(previously
Inadequate)
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4.
5.

The Spires
Academy
The Everitt
Academy

6.

The Fen
Rivers
Academy

7.

The Coppice
Spring
Academy
The Austen
Academy

8.

AP/May
2017
SEM/
September
2017
SEMH/
June 2018)

4 - 16/
NOR 50
9-16/
NOR 50

100

SEMH/
September
2019
SEN/April
2021

N/A

50

Awaiting
inspection
Sept 2019

Inadequate

9-16/
NOR 34

96

June 2019

Inadequate

11-16/
NOR

80

July 2017

Good

5-16/
NOR 22

128

Awaiting
inspection

N/A

The Everitt Academy and Fen Rivers Academy have been operating under a warning notice since
their first full inspection (Fen Rivers June 2019, Everitt Sept. 2019). Monitoring meetings with the
Regional Schools Commissioner (EENEL) and across two Joint Improvement Boards (comprising
Academy and LGB leaders, MAT leaders and Local Authority SEND Leaders) reviewed the urgent
work the Trust is taking to address the weaknesses identified at each academy.
The reviews covered the positive progress the academies are making against the statutory action
plans and the work and impact of the Trust and both Improvement Boards in supporting and
challenging the school leadership. Monitoring of both academies will continue until such time that
standards improve with the expectation that any Ofsted monitoring will evidence the trust is taking
the necessary action.
The Covid-19 monitoring inspection December 2020 was positive and confirmed leaders are taking
effective action to provide education. The on-site monitoring inspection in March 2021 at Everitt
Academy in was also positive and confirmed safeguarding as effective.
The monitoring inspection in June 2021 at the Everitt Academy concluded leaders are not taking
effective action to improve the school and that safeguarding is not effective. This predominantly
relates to the pace of implementing the identified improvements within the approved action plan and
feedback about how bullying concerns between pupils are dealt with. Trust Leaders are of the view
that the judgement is not an accurate reflection of the contextual evidence-base. The Trust has
submitted formal representations to the Regional Schools Commissioner.
As at the end of the Academic Year the Termination Warning Notice remained in place and the RSC
EENEL met with Trust Leaders to agree a targeted support plan for the academy.
The Fen Rivers Academy is also operating under a warning notice since its first full inspection (June
2019). The June monitoring visit was positive and confirmed that leaders were taking effective action
to improve the school and that safeguarding is effective.
The Austen Academy joined the Catch22 MAT following its opening in April 2021 and receives
targeted support from the Trust with post-opening reviews and monitoring visits, target setting and
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Trustees' Report (continued)
development planning and self-evaluation and quality assurance. The Austen Academy is colocated in Basingstoke with the Ashwood Academy and The Coppice Spring School and realises
the vision of a 3-school specialist Hub in the region and enables the future development of the Trust
and Sponsor’s place-based strategy.
The remaining Academies are geographically spread and the Trust empowers system leadership
and distributed leadership through its ‘communities of practice’. Individual and peer learning and
development is promoted across professional practitioner networks, supporting routes into teaching
and early career pathways professional development and formal CPD including national
professional qualifications. Collaboration and partnership working is now embedded between the
MAT Academies, the Sponsor’s Independent Schools and the sponsor organisation and this
strategic development is adding value, capacity and innovation.
The Trust’s strategy remains focussed on quality and raising standards - consolidating and further
improving the good quality that exists and addressing any weaknesses swiftly – so that all our pupils
access consistently high performing specialist provision and achieve outcomes significantly above
the national average
Meaningful qualifications
The MAT performance shows an improving trend at GCSE over time has been sustained for English
and Maths increasing achievement at higher grades (9-4)
It should be noted that the current year results are lower overall than the spike seen in 19/20 and
relates to the cumulative impact of sustained interruptions on learning continuity during the pandemic
and the consequently the actual quantity and quality of book work produced by pupils and available
evidence for teachers to assess. Furthermore, the strengthened approach to 20/21 teacher
assessed grades including moderation and rigour compared to 19/20 system.
The average number of qualifications achieved shows a sustained improving trend over time with
20/21 comparative to 19/20 for the MAT. Overall achievement in Maths appears to reflect the positive
impact of CPD and prioritised investment. Science is sustained compared with previous year and a
continuing priority subject.
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Positive Destinations
The Trust’s headline destination data at leaving/on exit (0 month) and at 3 and 6 months for 18/19,
19/20 and 20/21 is shown below. 0, 3 and 6 months
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Safe Schools
Our daily school vision is to create safe learning environments that develop and enhance our
students’ capacity to participate, alongside enabling their academic and vocational success. We aim
to provide students with the skills needed to achieve success beyond statutory education and with
the ability to engage with society through the creation of learning opportunities that go beyond the
classroom.
Our behaviour offer draws on evidence-based models in neuroscience, attachment theory and child
development to provides our staff with insights, skills & strategies to work with our students in ways
that increase their safety, sense of safety and their readiness and capacity to learn.
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Our approach to behaviour & attitudes is rooted in a Trauma-Informed (TISUK), Rights Respecting
(UNCRC RRSA) and Restorative Practices framework. We perceive misbehaviour (causing harm to
others and/or property/the learning environment) as a breaking of a social bond. We believe that it
is our responsibility to ensure that our daily school life procedures and processes enable our
students to learn how to make choices and meet their own needs without harming others and whilst
looking after themselves. We therefore seek to resolve incidents of harm caused by involving all
those relevant to the event in acknowledging responsibilities, repairing harm, promoting respect and
strengthening relationships.
While standards for behaviour are improving across most of the schools, with many starting from a
very low base, there is a need to accelerate the consistency and pace of improvement. The
geographical dispersal of our schools contributes an inhibiting factor as does the ability to recruit
quality and experienced specialist staff within the isolated and coastal localities in which our schools
are based. Hence the need to develop our staff development offer with networked opportunities to
visit, observe and learn alongside outstanding practitioners and understand how the adults set the
emotional tone in modelling their school’s ethos and climate for learning and expectations for
behaviour for learning.
Behaviour Hubs Programme - places secured for Brunel Academy (Extended) and Burton
Academy (Core).
Our involvement with the programme is viewed as additional networked capacity building.
The Behaviour Hubs programme will support and accelerate the work we are doing across
all academies within the Trust
Team Teach ‘Train the Trainer’ Training Twenty-four behaviour leaders from across all
thirteen schools came together in July to complete their Team Teach Train the Trainer
training. This investment represents a significant strengthening of in-school capacity to lead
INSET, support and further develop practice in de-escalation, review behaviour plans and
risk assessments, provide induction and refresher training, review incidents involving
physical intervention and practice reviews.
Staff welfare and wellbeing support the New access to Health Assured Structured
Professional Support (SPS) represents an investment in a strengthened programme offer of
staff support to access whenever a significant injury sustained, other physical injury and all
RIDDOR incidents (to be defined within the H&S policy). The Structured Professional
Support (SPS) programme is an intervention that provides emotional support to employees.
The programme is designed to be proactive in helping ensure employees have appropriate
support to maintain an overall sense of wellbeing while doing their job. Delivered by
clinicians, an SPS session will assist employees before they find themselves unable to cope
or struggling to maintain a reasonable work/life balance that benefits their emotional and
physical wellbeing.
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COVID Impact
The Trustees continue to acknowledge the leadership and resilience demonstrated by every Head
teacher, the Executive Principals and Education SLT colleagues during the Covid-19 challenge. Our
schools have remained open for our pupils throughout and the new provision arrangements put in
place and the demonstrable impact have been captured by Head teachers in a consistent format as
important self-evaluation evidence.
Our approach and communications have emphasised consistently ‘if we can do so safely then we
will’ and our planning principles have remained constant throughout:
o

o
o

Staff must be confident that they are safe.
School leaders must be confident in the arrangements they put in place adhere to the
government guidance.
Parents and pupils must be confident enough in our arrangements so pupils attend.

Our School’s Health & Safety Risk Assessments and the continual review of these in line with DfE
updated guidance have enabled Head teachers to plan and review local arrangements, decisionmaking and communications with stakeholders consistent with our planning principles.
The Trust have developed comprehensive remote learning systems and resources to ensure
continuity of learning where individual students or groups of students are required to isolate at home.
This is delivered together with robust systems and processes to ensure pupil welfare and
safeguarding is proactively monitored.
Trust Leaders maintain regular dialogue regarding the effectiveness of the Covid-secure
arrangements in schools. The Trust operates a system of dynamic communication alerts and a triage
approach for reportable incidents and review arrangements of how interruptions are managed.
Interruptions to ‘business as usual’ are reported to the Trust Board. All schools have been supported
with advice and capacity to ensure the updated DfE guidance is implemented reflecting the changes
on the wider reopening of schools.
All Schools complete a Covid SEF Addendum which is reviewed as part of leadership’s routine and
ongoing monitoring and evaluation activity.
The full opening of Schools week ending the 8th March 2021 shifted the expectation for attendance
to mandatory (statutory school age). Trust leaders review actual attendance at each school on a
weekly basis. Targeted support and intervention through school attendance strategies continue to
be prioritised although the impact on attendance during the national lockdowns is evident.
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The ethos and approach of the Ofsted ‘Covid-monitoring’ Visits during Autumn Term were noted by
the Head teachers as supportive, and the conversations were positive. The published letters have
provided a positive validation efforts and energy of our school leaders and school teams of the
improvement work and progress of the schools in context of the Covid-challenge.
Coppice Spring Academy (27.10.20)
Fen Rivers Academy (10.11.20)
Everitt Academy (01.12.20 and March 2021)
Structured conversations focussed on how the schools have been affected by Covid, the leadership
decisions and rationale, attendance and re-integration processes, support for pupils’ wellbeing and
learning readiness, safeguarding and health and safety, effectiveness of wider agencies, curriculum
offer and adaptations to ensure catch-up and use of Catch-up funding.
Colleagues in our schools have been magnificent in their response to Covid and throughout Covid
in keeping their school communities safe. In recognition of this the Trust arranged for £20k to be
provided in the budget forecast in support of staff wellbeing and safe school communities. The format
for appreciating and celebrating our schools’ response to Covid-19 within school communities during
Summer 2 was determined by Head teachers.
Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. The impact of the Coronavirus pandemic has been considered as part of this process and at
present this has had no significant impact on the finances of the Trust. For this reason, it has followed
the going concern basis in preparing accounts that can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies.
Financial Review
The Trust's income is obtained from three main sources; Department for Education recurrent grants,
"top-up" funding from the Local Authority and charges made directly to schools. The income received
from these sources during the year ended 31 August 2021, and the associated expenditure, are
shown as Restricted General Funds in the statement of financial activities.
During the year ended 31 August 2021, the academy trust incurred total expenditure of £20,339
(2020: £10,913k). Total incoming resources for the year were £30,408k (2020: £17,402k)
The Trust held total fund balances at 31 August 2021 of £34,546k comprising of general funds of
£1,633k, fixed assets of £36,671k and a pension scheme liability of £3,758k.
The deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is recognised on the balance sheet in
accordance with FRS102. At 31 August 2021 the deficit stood at £3,758k (2020: £2,682k). The
existence of the pension scheme deficit does not mean an immediate liability crystallises and is
addressed over a series of years through pension contributions recommended by the pension
scheme actuaries during subsequent valuations of the scheme.
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Funding from grants has been spent in accordance with the conditions that are attached to them.
Where not used during this financial year, they have been carried forward to be spent in the next or
future financial years.
The Coronavirus has not impacted the Trusts financial sustainability so far although the Trustees
continue to monitor the situation to guard against and plan for any future impact.
Reserves Policy
For the current financial year, the approach has been to meet essential expenditure with respect to
the running of our open Academies and the Trust as well as the on-boarding of the new academies.
The carrying forward of unspent funds is primarily for school improvement and finalising on-boarding,
making them available in the next and future financial years. The nature of the funding received
during the year is such that all reserves at 31 August 2021 are restricted. At the balance sheet date,
the restricted revenue reserves were £1,633k (2020; £1,285k), which the trustees consider to be
sufficient to run the now 8 open Academies for the foreseeable future and on-board any new
academies. It is felt that the current reserves are adequate to mitigate any financial risk that
Coronavirus may present. Moving forward the trustees will review the reserves policy annually and
will explore ways of building free reserves to cover any unforeseen expenditure and allow future
investment.
Following the addition of The Austen Academy, and after considering revaluations and impairments,
the fixed asset reserves at 31 August 2021 were £36,671k (2020: £26,327k).
As a result of accounting for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) a pension fund deficit
of £3,758k as at 31 August 2021 (2020: £2,682k) has been recognised within restricted pension
reserves. The academy trust is paying contributions at the rate recommended by the actuary and
payments in respect of the deficit will occur over a number of years.
Investment Policy
As set out in its governing articles the academy trust has the powers to deposit or invest any funds
belonging to it not immediately required for the furtherance of its object. At present, the policy is to
deposit funds in a current account held at a stable and substantial bank.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties:
The trustees discussed the principal risks and uncertainties facing the academy trust during the
period under review. These were completed as part of the due diligence process undertaken by the
MAT.
They related to obtaining greater clarity around funding and costs in future periods,
improving/maintaining the quality of education, the condition of premises, and the impact of pension
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liabilities. In the view of the trustees, these and other risks were sufficiently understood and
mitigated.
With effect from July 2021 line management of CFO has been established to Education CEO
who is the Accounting officer for the MAT and is now compliant with the requirements set out
in the Academy Handbook.
Targeted Trust Action Plan in conjunction with Coppice Spring Academy and Brunel
Academy setting out the Trust’s expectations for improvement and by when, success criteria,
planned support and any resourcing required and the programme for monitoring progress
and evaluating impact.
The new school building and premises at The Spires Academy does not provide access to
safe outdoor space for pupils to play. The school’s current arrangements are a weekly trip to
the local park and internal play zones (large indoor sports hall, soft play room, recreational
play room). Access to outdoor play space has been an ongoing matter since inception of
the building with the DfE. The Trust is continuing to work towards securing an appropriate
solution with the DfE for the primary pupils to access to outdoor space to play.
Staff recruitment and retention and development. Ensuring all academies remain right-sized
(admissions and staffing capacity and quality). Staff recruitment and retention is challenging
across the sector and turnover and absence causes significant disruption in small school
teams and an adverse impact on the consistency and continuity of staff known to pupils and
the quality of provision.
Key ongoing risks include:
1. Continuing to secure places and revenue to fund the ongoing business of the MAT & the
Academy, including any impact that Coronavirus may present.
2. Increases to pension liabilities and increments in pay, impacting on Academy running costs.
3. Ensuring buildings for all Academies are appropriate and fit for purpose over the long-term.
4. Future changes to Education legislation and commissioner funding for AP and special
schools.
5. Achievement of Good/Outstanding OFSTED grades.
The trustees are managing these key risks and uncertainties by maintaining strong relationships
with funders; including national and local government and referring schools, investing in staff training
and development and establishing a building maintenance plan whilst ensuring prudent financial
management practices.
The Academies Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the
year was monitored by the Trustees.
Strategic Priorities
The Trust’s strategy continues to remain focused on improving quality to enable our pupils to
achieve well and progress in sustained positive destinations. Furthermore that strong governance
ensures a firm grasp on strategic priorities, an accurate view of performance and robust support
and challenge of the executive team and Headteachers when necessary.
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Key priorities for the future period are:
Setting future strategy - evaluating MAT capacity using the Improvement Capacity
assessment framework and developing the 2021-24 MAT Strategic Improvement Plan to
support and drive school improvement.
Trust Support Plans - Ensure any weaknesses identified in academies are targeted and
addressed through Trust Support Plans, that school self-evaluation is at least good or
improving rapidly towards this and that any Ofsted monitoring evidences the trust is taking
the necessary action and standards are improving. Continue prioritising support for the
uninspected academy and academies requiring improvement.
Local governance - Review the Trust’s local governance arrangement (LGBs) in
conjunction with committee chairs and further develop the scheme of delegation.
Review the effectiveness of the Education Executive Structure – To ensure the
capability to renew and refresh through regular reflection of effectiveness and well-articulated
plans for improvement is key to the MAT’s success; this includes plans to build the Trust’s
leadership and school improvement capacity.
Centralised risk register – Development to oversight of operational risk and control through
statutory compliance dashboard, effectiveness of expediting actions to address areas of noncompliance and risk, VFM of central services, addressing staff risk and findings form recent
staff engagement survey.
Infrastructure investment - Planned use of reserves in 2021/22 to address key risks and
Trust support plans.
Pay and remuneration – Developing a pay proposal improves the long term pay and reward
package for all staff including recognition for high performance and career progression.
Staff development - Rollout of Bluesky initially to support effective appraisal process for all
staff and Trust sightlines. Its use and application will be extended to professional learning
and strategic development later in the academic year.
#weareCatch22Education - Further develop a ‘one Trust’ identity underpinned by
consistent approaches aligned with policy and ethos so that our systematic review and
development processes across the portfolio of academies ensure consistent implementation
of our mission, values and educational intent:
o drives up standards in the quality of education,
o supports recruitment, retention and development of the best staff,
School Buildings
o Evaluation of condition across the portfolio
o Priority work and investment required to address any immediate concerns (work
required this academic year)
o Planned maintenance and investment required to maintain school buildings between
2021 -24
o Annual value (expenditure trend) of unplanned maintenance costs to support budget
planning 2021-22
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Partnerships
The Trust will seek to maximise its effectiveness in delivering for pupils through developing
external focussed collaborations with other schools and wider alliances with stakeholders in
the education system and locality-based strategic partnership working.
o Developing an approach to partnership working with the other similar MATs. Initial
activity will be high-level benchmarking (systems, structure, finance).
o The Education CEO is now a member of the National AP/SEND CEO network. Preexisting and new professional relationships will be fostered within the network with
the expectation to leverage insights and opportunities for best practice sharing, sector
insights, system leadership and data benchmarking.
o Locality-based Education Partnership Models: Our Academies are located across 5
geographical regions. We will seek to maximise our effectiveness in delivering for
pupils and securing best possible outcomes through engaging proactively in
innovative system-led collaborations with other education delivery partners and
stakeholder alliances within the regions where we operate. Reform opportunities will
be strengthened by Catch22’ involvement as Sponsor and leading expertise in social
systems.
Auditors
Insofar as the trustees are aware:
there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and
the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.
Moore Kingston Smith LLP were deemed reappointed auditors to the charitable company and in
accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution that they be reappointed will
be put at a General Meeting.
Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on ………………… and signed on the board’s behalf by:

……………………………………………………….
Katherine Grant
Trustee
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Scope of Responsibility
As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Catch22 Multi
Academies Trust Limited has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise.
Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and are in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the
funding agreement between Catch22 Multi Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses
or breakdowns in internal control.
Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that provided in the Trustees Report and
in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met seven times
this year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:
Trustee Meetings attended
Chris Wright
Katherine Grant
Kevin Munday
Francesca Pollard
Pauline Campbell
Laura Trendall-Morrison
Heidi Stewart
Tom Richmond
Eileen Zhang
Alison Alexander

7
7
1
1
6
5
1
5
3
2

Out of a possible
7
7
2
2
7
5
1
5
3
2

Board Composition and Activity
Effective from 17th December 2020, Pauline Campbell stepped down as chair, remaining on the
board as a trustee. Kath Grant was appointed as chair having served on the board since its inception
under the new governance structure.
Key areas of focus were identified during an internal review, these being:
Financial oversight
Internal audit
Risk management
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Policy and legislation
Parent voice
Safeguarding
Fran Pollard and Kevin Monday stepped down from the board effective from 17th December 2020,
with Laura Trendall-Morrison and Tom Richmond appointed to the Board on the same date.
Laura Trendall-Morrison brought expertise in auditing and risk. Tom Richmond’s background with
the Department for Education and think-tanks has strengthened the board’s knowledge in education
policy and legislation.
Heidi Stewart was appointed as a Trustee to bring experience working with people with mental health
and learning disabilities on 18th March 2021 but stepped down for personal reasons on 15th July
2021.
Eileen Zhang was also appointed as a Trustee on 18th March 2021 and brought expertise from the
finance sector, in addition to lived parental experience with a child with special education needs.
At the end of the academic year Pauline Campbell agreed to remain on the board for a further year
and a replacement has already been recruited to start following her retirement at the end of the
academic year 2021/2022.
Alison Alexander was appointed as the lead Trustee for Safeguarding at the end of the academic
year.
The board held 4 general meetings during the academic year covering but not limited to the following:
Trust policies – oversight and ratification.
Academy and Trust target setting
Finance, including but not limited to CIF bids and use of reserves
Safeguarding oversight
Health and safety oversight
Projects oversight
In addition, a remuneration committee was held to ratify any appropriate pay changes and two
finance focussed meetings were held to approve budgets and annual audited accounts.
Governance Review
When self-evaluating against the Department for Education’s Board Competencies Framework the
trust performed as follows:

24
Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021
Classification : Official

Governance Statement (continued)
1. Strategic Leadership
The Trust have been clear with their strategic aims and direction, which have been set out and
agreed by the board. It is clear that both executives and Trustees understand and embody the
overarching culture and values of the Trust (see Objective and Activities, page 7).
An additional need for a stronger focus on risk management has been identified, therefore a
dedicated MAT audit, risk and finance committee has been established, to be chaired by LauraTrendall-Morrison; which will begin in effect from the beginning of the academic year 2021/2022.
This committee of the MAT board will meet to give recommendations for decisions at the MAT
board on the following areas:
Annual audited accounts
Annual budget
Use of reserves
CIF bids
Finance policies
Internal and external audit procedures
Risk management
2. Accountability
The Executive leadership team’s performance is monitored on a termly basis with extensive data
provided for each Academy. Challenge is thorough and thoughtful, providing insight and actionable
suggestions for improvement.
Financial proposals are presented clearly and challenged rigorously before decisions are made.
To ensure effective oversight of funds, the Chair and Trustees have received financial accounts on
a monthly basis, with the Board reviewing at each meeting.
An external governance audit has been commissioned to take place in December 2021.
3. People
The Trust Board is currently operating with an effective level of skill and expertise. Recruitment
has been done thoughtfully and regarding the strengths and weaknesses of current members.
A Trustee skills audit is scheduled for completion in February 2022 to identify further areas of the
board which can be strengthened moving forward.
4. Structures
The governance structure of the MAT (see structure, governance, and management page 4) has
functioned adequately, providing clear lines of responsibility through the Scheme of delegation,
which was consulted with Local Governing Bodies (LGB) and approved by the board in December
2020.
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However, challenges with consistency of approach and recruitment at LGB level have been
identified. The Trust are consulting with the LGB chairs and Academy staff to explore
improvements which could be made to streamline the structure at LGB level.
5. Compliance
The Trust maintain and update various tracking tools to ensure it maintains compliance
throughout. More effective oversight is needed at LGB level; therefore, the Trust are implementing
a shared document system to ensure compliance standards are met throughout and information
sharing between Trust board and LGB is more transparent.
6. Evaluation
The board self-evaluates against the Department for Education’s Competencies Framework.
An external governance audit has been commissioned to commence in December 2021 and will
be performed by the National governance Association. A Trustee skills audit will be completed in
February 2022.
Review of Value for Money
As accounting officer of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust, the CEO is responsible and accountable
for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The
accounting officer is aware of the guide to academy value for money statements published by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency and understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
The accounting officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can
be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. Set out below are the
principles by which the accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for
money during the year:
Establish and maintain strong financial management & governance structures
Oversee financial stability within the Trust and each Academy and top slice
appropriately
Ensure our resources are used efficiently to maximise value for money
Ensure growth and investment is focussed on delivering/maintaining high quality
education provision
Running a Multi Academy Trust on core funding alone can be challenging so to further ensure
financial sustainability and value for money, the Trust has:
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Financial Management
1 - Implemented strong budget management and controls ensuring each Academy has ended the
year with a healthy reserve.
2 – Applied for additional funding to facilitate MAT & school capacity to facilitate improvements to
the quality of teaching and learning and improved outcomes.
3 – Applied for additional funding to ensure our buildings are maintained/improved to appropriate
standards to facilitate smooth running of day-to-day activities
3 – Strong financial oversight through bi monthly review by the MAT board trustees of MAT and
school level reports as well as oversight and approval of the latest Trust and schools budgets for
2021-22.
4 - Clear delegation schemes are in place for financial limits.
Purchasing
5 - Support services not considered core to the delivery of outstanding education such as marketing,
IT, HR and finance processing has been out-sourced to Catch22 Charity Limited who have provided
those services “at cost”.
Leadership
6 – Delivering efficient leadership consisting of 2 full time Executive Principals, a 0.6fte CFO and
two Executive Vice-Principals. Additional resource, support and expertise in HR, Finance, IT and
Premises by Catch22 Charity is provided where required, especially for the on-boarding of new
schools.
Good use of external resources
7 - Encouraging Academies to share existing national resources and standardising systems and
software across the Trust to ensure value for money.
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited for the
year ended 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements.
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Capacity to Handle Risk
The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together
with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those
risks. The board of trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period
1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.
The Risk and Control Framework
The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular it includes:
comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees
regular reviews by the trustee board of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
delegation of authority and segregation of duties
identification and management of risks
Internal Audit
The board of trustees has established an Audit, Risk and Finance Committee as of September
2021, separating this from the wider Charity finance and audit functions, to provide a dedicated
and therefore more focussed, committee to review the internal audit function and all reports.
Under the internal audit programme, services rather than specific policies are reviewed and
critically assessed. In order to do this, a risk framework has been developed to seek assurances
across Catch22’s group risk landscape. The audit assesses compliance against Safeguarding,
Finance, People, Health & Safety, Data Protection risk pillars in the Multi Academy Trust.
The report sets out the audit’s findings and levels of compliance across the 5 risk pillars, highlights
where gaps have been found, and makes recommendations where improvements are needed.
The framework seeks to establish baseline metrics and key compliance questions to critically
assess and provide assurance against important regulatory risk areas. These baseline questions
are used as prompts for further analysis. Personnel files, incident logs, finance reports, training
records and absence history are considered and reviewed whilst undertaking the audit. Dip tests
are conducted on selected areas both centrally and locally within the provision.
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Whilst carrying out an internal audit on an Academy, all information (including financial and
incident data) is reviewed across the full academic year to enable the audit to gain a full view of
the services typical delivery. This allows for a wider picture to be gathered and any trend analysis
to be made.
The Internal Audit function for the Trust carries out an Academy based review each term with an
additional review of central functions carried out on an annual basis. Latest reports are submitted
to the next appropriate Trustees meeting.
Review of Effectiveness
As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:
the work of Catch22’s finance and business administration and audit committees
the work of the external auditor
the financial management and governance self-assessment process
the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the internal control framework
The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of any reviews of the
system of internal control and plans to address any weaknesses identified and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.
Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ………………… and signed on its
behalf by:

Katherine Grant

Jane Reed

Trustee

Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited I have considered my responsibility
to notify the academy trust board of trustees and the Education Schools Funding Agency of material
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the
funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As
part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial
Handbook 2020.
I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial
Handbook 2020.
I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be
notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

…………………………………………….
Jane Reed
Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited Accounting Officer

Date:
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The trustees (who act as governors of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited and are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing
the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts direction 2020 to 2021.
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue in business.
The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have
been applied for the purposes intended. The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable company’s website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ………………… and signed on its
behalf by:

……………………………………………………….
Katherine Grant
Trustee
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Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited ('the Academy Trust) for
the year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet,
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
Financial Reporting Standard 102.
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs(UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the audit of financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRS's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
• the information given in the strategic report and the trustees' annual report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
• the strategic report and the trustees' annual report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the trustees' annual report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures or trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 31, the trustees (who
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust's internal control.
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•
•

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to
continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below.
The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed
risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to
those assessed risks; and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during
the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both
management and those charged with governance of the Trust.
Our approach was as follows:
• we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the Trust through
the use of permanent audit file information, updated this year for any changes that have been identified
by management or by our own investigations and consiodered that the most significant are the
Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011, the Charities SORP 2019, the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021, the Academies Financial Handbook 2020 and UK financial reporting standards
as issued by the Financial Reporting Council;
•

we obtained an understanding of how the Trust complies with these requirements by discussions with
management and those charged with governance and through reviews of relevant accounting and
management records;

•

we assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, including the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and how it might occur, based on our work as outlined above;
we inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of noncompliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, using associated documentary
evidence to better understand items of interest;
based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations. As well as specific audit testing, this included approaching
accounting records with an inquisitive and sceptical mindset such that we examined items that were felt
to be of interest or of higher risk in this area, and obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.

•

•

To address the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we carried out the following work:
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•
•
•

procedures were undertaken to identify any unusual or unexpected matters, and the rationale behind any
such matters was examined;
journal entries were reviewed to identify unusual transactions;
judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the accounting
policies were reviewed.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.
Use of this report
This report is made solely to the Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to any party other than the charitable
company and charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.

Date:

James Saunders (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor

Devonshire House
60 Goswell Road
London
EC1M 7AD
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 16 July 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure
disbursed and income received by Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited during the period 1 September
2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
This report is made solely to Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited and the ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Catch22 Multi
Academies Trust Limited and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited and the ESFA, for our work, or for the conclusion we have
formed.
Respective responsibilities of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited’s
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 27 August 2014 and the Academies
Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.
Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engagement
as defined in our engagement letter.
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the academy trust’s income and expenditure.
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(continued)
The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
• Review of financial records for unusual transactions;
• Sample testing expenditure transactions were reasonable, appropriate and appropriately authorised in
accordance with the trust’s procurement policy;
• Review the minutes of the Board meetings;
• Review the processes and controls to identify related party transactions and potential conflicts;
• Obtaining formal representations from the Board and the accounting officer;
• Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was
significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report.
Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Date:

Moore Kingston Smith LLP
Reporting Accountant

Devonshire House
60 Goswell Road
London
EC1M 7AD
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Restricted
Pension
Funds
£000

Restricted
General
Funds
£000

2

-

-

18,882

18,882

7,088

3

-

11,526

-

11,526

10,314

-

11,526

18,882

30,408

17,402

Note
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities
Funding for the Trust's educational operations
Total Income

Restricted
Fixed Asset
Funds
£000

Total
2021
£000

Total
2020
£000

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations

5

1,000

10,859

8,480

20,339

10,913

Total Expenditure

4

1,000

10,859

8,480

20,339

10,913

(1,000)

667

10,402

10,069

6,489

377

(319)

(58)

-

-

13, 21

(453)
(1,076)

348

10,344

(453)
9,616

(469)
6,020

13

(2,682)

1,285

26,327

24,930

18,910

(3,758)

1,633

36,671

34,546

24,930

Net income
Transfers between funds
Other recognised (losses)/gains:
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined
benefit pension schemes
Net movement in funds
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward
Total funds carried forward

13

All of the Trust's activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods.
A Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses is not required as all gains and losses are included in the Statement of Financial
Activities.
The detailed comparative information of the Statement of Financial Activities is included in note 29.
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Notes

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors : amounts falling due within one year

2021
£000

10

2021
£000

2020
£000

36,084

25,819

11

1,518
2,172
3,690

813
1,831
2,644

12

(1,470)

(851)

Net current assets

2020
£000

2,220

1,793

Total assets less current liabilities

38,304

27,612

Net assets excluding pension liability

38,304

27,612

(3,758)

(2,682)

34,546

24,930

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

21

Total net assets
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund
General fund
Pension reserve

13
13
13

36,671
1,633
(3,758)

26,327
1,285
(2,682)

Total restricted funds

34,546

24,930

Total funds

34,546

24,930

The financial statements on pages 38 to 60 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on
……………. and are signed on their behalf by:

Katherine Grant
Trustee
Company number 08299181
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For the year ended 31 August 2021

Notes

2021
£000

2020
£000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

15

(662)

6,547

Cash flows used in investing activities

16

1,003

(6,276)

Cash flows from financing activities

17

-

-

341

271

1,831

1,560

2,172

1,831

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2020
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2021

18
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1

Statement of Accounting Policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.
Company Information
Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited is a private company limited by guarantee, domiciled and incorporated in England and
Wales. The registered office is 27 Pear Street, London, EC1V 3AG.
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical
cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: 'Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in these
financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds.
Going Concern
The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The trustees
make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial
statements, and have considered the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on budgets and forecasts. The global pandemic has had
minimal impact on financial position and operations of the trust and therefore the trustees have concluded that the Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about
the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.
Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be
measured reliably.
Government grants
Government grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where
income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the
income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions
are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable and any
abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.
Capital grants are recognised when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset
fund.
Sponsorship Income
Sponsorship income provided to the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and it
can be measured reliably.
Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is
probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the Trust has
provided the goods or services.
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Donated Goods, Facilities and Services
The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Trust are recognised at fair value in the period in which they
are receivable as incoming resources, where the benefit to the Trust can be reliably measured. An equivalent amount is
included as expenditure under the relevant heading in the Statement of Financial Activities, except where the gift in kind was a
fixed asset in which case the amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the Trust‘s accounting policies.
Transfer on conversion
Where assets are received by the trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are measured at fair value and
recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the trust. An equal amount of
income is recognised as Transfer on conversion within Donations and capital grant income on the face of the Statement of
Financial Activities.
Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust
Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust, the transferred net
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership
pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into the academy
trust within Donations and capital grant income to the net assets acquired.
Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion/into the academy trust)
Where the donated good is a fixed asset, it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding
amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with
the academy trust‘s accounting policies.
Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured
reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to
that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single
activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated
on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to governance of
the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Tangible Fixed Assets
Expenditure that is normally capitalised includes property and related expenditure on fixtures and fittings, purchases of computer
hardware, furniture and equipment. Expenditure of less than £1,000 is not normally capitalised (the exception being some items
of IT equipment) and is taken into account in full in the year of purchase. Capitalised assets are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private
sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are
specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant
assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the
useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent with the Trust’s depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset
on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:
Long leasehold buildings

0.8% (over 125 year lease term)

The expected useful life of long leasehold buildings were reviewed as at 31 August 2021 as part of the impairment process. This
highlighted changes in the expected useful life of the buildings which will take effect from the year ended 31 August 2022.
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are
recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Department for Education (DfE) procured valuations received for 2 schools this year gave indication of impairment of land and
buildings. External valuations were obtained of all land and buildings as at 31 August 2021 and shortfalls recognised as
impairments. As part of the valuation process updated estimates have been obtained of the expected useful lives of the buildings
which will be applied from 1 September 2021, when buildings will be depreciated over 30-60 years.

Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a
transfer of economic benefit will be required in the settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably.
Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as
advanced payments for the goods and services it must provide.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.
Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. Financial instruments are recognised in the
company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, only when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:
Basic Financial Assets
Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables, are initially measured at transaction price including
transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the arrangement
constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at
a market rate of interest. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Derecognition of Financial
Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity.
Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand comprise cash and cash equivalents which include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. These are classified as basic financial
instruments and are measured at face value.
Classification of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into.
Basic Financial Liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, include trade creditors, accruals and other creditors, and are measured at amortised cost. Taxation
and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash
or another financial instrument. Amounts due to group undertakings are held at face value less any impairment.
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled, or they
expire.
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered
by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent
that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working
lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable
payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. As stated in note 21, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use
defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.
The LGPS' are funded schemes and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust in separate trustee administered
funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected
unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of the scheme introductions,
benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the
defined benefit and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
Fund Accounting
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the funders where the
asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.
Restricted pension reserves are resources or liabilities relating to the trust's obligations to the Local Government Pension
Schemes, of which some of its employees are members.
Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include
grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education.
Critical Accounting Estimates and Areas of Judgment
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Local Government Pension Scheme
The present value of the Local Government Pension Schemes defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest
full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August
2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact
on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Land and buildings transferred on conversion
Long leasehold title of land and buildings have been transferred to the trust at £nil consideration. The premises have been
recognised in the Trust's accounts at the best estimate of their fair value as at the date of conversion. This was estimated at
the most recent valuation figures provided by the transferring local authority, as a best approximation of fair value.

44

Catch22 Multi Academies Trust Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2021
2

Donations and capital grants
Restricted
Pension
Funds
£000

Total
2021
£000

Total
2020
£000

Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust
(see note 26)

-

-

-

3,433

Transfer of new academies (see note 24)
Transferred from DfE (see note 25)
Transferred from local authority
Capital grants

-

12,460
5,158
261
1,003

12,460
5,158
261
1,003

3,100
555

-

18,882

18,882

7,088

7,385

7,088

2020 total

3

Restricted
Fixed Asset
Funds
£000

(297)

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations
Total
2021
£000

Restricted funds
DfE / ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Grants
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil Premium
Teachers Pension grant
Others

4,217
40

3,705
103

216
214
182
4,869

202
180
236
4,426

127
98
5
230

-

5,879
5,879

5,220
5,220

548
11,526

668
10,314

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Covid mass testing funding
Covid catch up premium
Covid other

Other Government grants
Local authority grants

Other income from the academy trust's education operations

Total
2020
£000

The academy received £98k of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of this funding totalled £98k.

4

Expenditure
Staff
Costs
£000
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs
Allocated support costs

2020 total

Non Pay Expenditure
Other
Premises
Costs
£000
£000

Total
2021
£000

7,442
1,467
8,909

9,110
9,110

772
1,548
2,320

8,214
12,125
20,339

7,936

929

2,048

10,913

Total
2020
£000

7,524
3,389
10,913
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Expenditure (continued)
Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes:

Depreciation
Fees payable to auditor:
Audit
Non-audit services:

5

2021
£000

2020
£000

7,614

141

12
8

11
7

Charitable activities
Total
2021
£000
Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

Support costs - educational operations
Support staff costs
Depreciation and impairments
Technology costs
Premises costs
Support services from group companies
Pension finance costs
Other support costs
Governance costs
Total support costs

Total
2020
£000

8,214
12,125

7,524
3,389

20,339

10,913

Total
2021
£000

Total
2020
£000

1,467
7,614
519
1,500
358
45
596
26

1,270
141
421
790
253
35
457
22

12,125

3,389
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Staff
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the period were:

Total
2021
£000

Total
2020
£000

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes

5,820
570
1,782
8,172

4,874
476
1,357
6,707

Supply staff costs
Recharged staff costs from group undertakings

657
80
8,909

1,096
132
7,935

b. Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the trust during the period was as follows:
2021
No.
Charitable Activities
Teachers
Administration and educational support
Management

2020
No.
85
120
15
220

67
108
13
188

c. Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:
2021
No.
£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000

2020
No.
7
3

4
1

d. Key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Trust comprises the trustees and the senior management team as listed on page
3. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Trust was £348,967 (2020: £266,758).
Key management employed by Catch22 Charity Limited and the cost of their employee benefits, included in the
amount above, in relation to time spent providing services to the academy trust are recharged to the academy trust
by Catch22 and amounted to £nil (2020: £82,961).
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Related Party Transactions - Trustees' Remuneration & Expenses
No trustees have been paid remuneration or received other benefits from an employment with the academy trust.
During the year ended 31 August 2021, no expenses were reimbursed to trustees (2020: nil).

8

Trustees' and Officers' Insurance
In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees and officers from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance provides cover up
to £1,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the period ended 31 August 2021 was £7,374 (2020: £6,504). The cost of this
insurance is included in the total insurance cost

9

Central Services
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
• human resources (HR)
• financial services
• legal services
• facilities management
• educational support services
The trust charges for these services on a flat percentage of core income, at 8% (2020: 8%)
At the Balance Sheet date an additional charge was made of £60,000 of in-year surpluses from those open schools making a
surplus in the year.
In the prior year an additional charge was made of 10% of in-year surpluses from those open schools making a surplus in the
year.
The total amounts charged during the year were as follows:
2021
£000
The Ashwood Academy
The Austen Academy
The Brunel Academy
The Burton Academy
The Spires Academy
The Everitt Academy
The Fen Rivers Academy
The Coppice Spring Academy

177
32
191
165
130
175
171
219
1,260

2020
£000
106
90
88
70
81
93
103
631
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10 Tangible Fixed Assets
Leasehold
Land and
Buildings
£000

Total
£000

Cost
At 1 September 2020
Transfer of existing academies into the trust (See note 24)
Revaluation (See note 25)
Transferred from local authority

26,165
12,460
5,158
261

26,165
12,460
5,158
261

At 31 August 2021

44,044

44,044

Depreciation
At 1 September 2020
Charged in period
Impairment

346
186
7,428

346
186
7,428

At 31 August 2021

7,960

7,960

Net book values
At 31 August 2021

36,084

36,084

At 1 September 2020

25,819

25,819

11 Debtors
Total
2021
£000
Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

Total
2020
£000

64
356
1,098

112
86
615

1,518

813
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12 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Total
2021
£000
Trade creditors
Other taxation and social security
Amounts due to group undertakings
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Total
2020
£000
493
136
266
139
436

280
111
34
119
307

1,470

851

Deferred income
2021
£000

2020
£000
9
(9)
65
65

Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

1
(1)
9
9

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for services in the next financial year.

13 Funds
Balance at
1 September
2020
£000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Grants
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil Premium
Teachers Pension grant
Others
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding
Local Authority grants
Other grants

Pension Reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants
Fixed assets held

Total restricted funds

Incoming
Resources
£000

Resources
Expended
£000

Gains,
Losses &
Transfers
£000

Balance at
31 August
2021
£000

108

4,217
40

(4,217)
(148)

-

-

1,177
1,285

216
214
182
230
5,879
548
11,526

(216)
(214)
(182)
(230)
(5,104)
(548)
(10,859)

(319)
(319)

1,633
1,633

(2,682)
(2,682)

-

(1,000)
(1,000)

(76)
(76)

(3,758)
(3,758)

508
25,819
26,327

1,003
17,879
18,882

(866)
(7,614)
(8,480)

(58)
(58)

587
36,084
36,671

24,930

30,408

(20,339)

(453)

34,546

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Restricted general funds
This includes all monies received from the ESFA to carry out the objectives of the Trust. It includes the School Budget
Share.
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it
could carry forward at 31 August 2021.
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13 Funds (continued)
Pension reserve
This represents the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the five LGPS defined benefit pension schemes. Resources
expended comprise the current service cost and finance cost for the year. £377,000 transfer into the pension reserve represents the
employer contribution payment against the deficit, from revenue funds, with a £453,000 actuarial loss creating a net loss and transfer
of £76,000.
Fixed asset fund
The fixed asset fund includes grants received from the DfE and other sources to finance the development and building of the academy
and other tangible fixed assets, and the annual charges for depreciation of these assets. Funds transferred from the restricted fixed
asset funds to the restricted general funds represent ESFA grants used towards repairs and maintenance costs of fixed assets at the
schools.
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Trust at the
discretion of the trustees.
Transfers between funds
Transfers from the restricted general fund to the pension reserve relate to the payments made from GAG funds towards reducing the
LGPS defined benefit pension scheme liability.
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Balance at
1 September
2019
£000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Grants
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Local Authority grants
Other grants

Pension Reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants
Fixed assets held

Total restricted funds

Incoming
Resources
£000

Resources
Expended
£000

Gains,
Losses &
Transfers
£000

Balance at
31 August
2020
£000

91
1,112
1,203

3,705
103
618
5,220
668
10,314

(3,705)
(86)
(618)
(4,861)
(668)
(9,938)

(294)
(294)

108
1,177
1,285

(1,499)
(1,499)

(297)
(297)

(734)
(734)

(152)
(152)

(2,682)
(2,682)

77
19,129
19,206

555
6,830
7,385

(100)
(141)
(241)

(24)
1
(23)

508
25,819
26,327

18,910

17,402

(10,913)

(469)

24,930

Analysis of funds by academy balance
2021
£000
Restricted general funds
The Ashwood Academy
The Brunel Academy
The Burton Academy
The Spires Academy
The Everitt Academy
The Fen Rivers Academy
The Coppice Springs Academy
The Austen Academy
Central Services

2020
£000

345
324
187
46
121
179
197
82
152
1,633

320
395
179
73
142
187
84
108
(203)
1,285

Pension Reserve
Restricted fixed asset funds

(3,758)
36,671

(2,682)
26,327

Total restricted funds

34,546

24,930
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13 Funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the period was as follows:
Teaching and
Educational
Support
Staff Costs
£000
The Ashwood Academy
The Brunel Academy
The Burton Academy
The Spires Academy
The Everitt Academy
The Fen Rivers Academy
The Coppice Springs Academy
The Austen Academy
Central Services
Academy Trust

913
1,022
691
971
877
831
1,240
273
625
7,443

Teaching and
Educational
Support
Staff Costs
£000
The Ashwood Academy
The Brunel Academy
The Burton Academy
The Spires Academy
The Everitt Academy
The Fen Rivers Academy
The Coppice Springs Academy
The Austen Academy
Central Services
Academy Trust

923
931
687
797
811
797
1,144
18
560
6,668

Other
Support
Staff Costs
£000
366
309
160
148
112
147
117
45
63
1,467

Other
Support
Staff Costs
£000
279
271
213
97
148
95
90
11
66
1,270

Educational
Supplies
£000
7
14
32
53
18
40
22
8
194

Educational
Supplies
£000
10
17
100
25
129
12
25
318

Other Costs
(excluding
Depreciation)
£000
219
388
255
450
333
261
285
115
449
2,755

Other Costs
(excluding
Depreciation)
£000
348
224
338
403
306
214
284
7
392
2,516

Total
2021
£000
1,505
1,733
1,138
1,622
1,340
1,279
1,664
441
1,137
11,859

Total
2020
£000
1,560
1,443
1,338
1,322
1,394
1,118
1,543
36
1,018
10,772
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14 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:
Restricted
Pension
Funds
£000
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Restricted
General
Funds
£000

(3,758)
(3,758)

3,103
(1,470)
1,633

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted
Restricted
Pension
General
Funds
Funds
£000
£000
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets

(2,682)
(2,682)

Restricted
Fixed Asset
Funds
£000
36,084
587
36,671

Restricted
Fixed Asset
Funds
£000

2,136
(851)
1,285

25,819
508
26,327

Total
Funds
£000
36,084
3,690
(1,470)
(3,758)
34,546

Total
Funds
£000
25,819
2,644
(851)
(2,682)
24,930

15 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities
2021
£000
Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial activities)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation [note 10]
Impairment [note 10]
Gifted assets
Capital Grants from DfE and other capital income
Defined benefit pension scheme deficit brought in on transfer
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable [note 21]
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost [note 21]
Decrease/(Increase) in debtors
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors
Net Cash provided by operating activities

2020
£000

10,069

6,489

186
7,428
(17,879)
(1,003)
578
45
(705)
619

141
(555)
297
382
35
(402)
160

(662)

6,547

16 Cash flows from investing activities
2021
£000

2020
£000

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

1,003

(6,831)
555

Net cash used in investing activities

1,003

(6,276)
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17 Cash flows from financing activities
2021
£000
Repayments of borrowing
Cash inflows from new borrowing
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

2020
£000
-

-

18 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2021
£000
Cash in hand and at bank

2,172
2,172

2020
£000
1,831
1,831

19 Contingent Liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities to disclose in the accounts.
20 Members' Liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

21 Pension and Similar Obligations
The Trust’s employees belong to six principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales
(TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS') for non-teaching staff,
consisting of the Hampshire County Council Pension Fund which is managed by Hampshire County Council for
Ashwood Academy and The Coppice Springs Academy staff, the Northamptonshire Pension Fund which is managed by
Northamptonshire County Council for the Spires Academy staff, the Devon County Council Pension Fund which is
managed by Devon County Council for the Burton Academy and Brunel Academy staff in Torbay, the Norfolk County
Council pension fund which is managed by Norfolk County Council for Fen Rivers Academy, and the Suffolk County
Council pension fund which is managed by Suffolk County Council for Everitt Academy.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial
valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the five LGPS schemes, 31 March 2019.

Contributions amount to £138,537 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020: £119,230) and are included
within other creditors payable within one year.
Teachers’ Pension Scheme
Introduction
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'
Pensions Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out
of the TPS following enrolment.
The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public
funds provided by Parliament.
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Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to
specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design
of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS affecting contributions during the year was carried out as at 31
March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultation are:
• employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration levy)
• total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of
£218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
• the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of
CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed
to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.
The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £841,000 (2020: £665,000).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is available on the Teachers’ Pensions website.
Under the definitions set out in FRS102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted for its contributions to the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
The LGPS' are funded defined benefit pension schemes, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution
made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £486,000 (2020: £410,000), of which employer’s contributions totalled £377,000 (2020:
£317,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £109,000 (2020: £93,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years is between 6.5
and 16.9 per cent for employers and is between 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure,
outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on
18 July 2013.
Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumption (CPI)
RPI Inflation

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumption (CPI)
RPI Inflation

At 31
August
2021
Hampshire

At 31
August
2021
Norfolk

At 31
August
2021
Northamptonshire

At 31
August
2021
Suffolk

At 31
August
2021
Torbay

3.60%
2.60%
1.70%
2.60%
3.60%

3.60%
2.90%
1.65%
2.90%
3.60%

3.40%
2.90%
1.65%
2.90%
3.40%

3.60%
2.90%
1.65%
2.90%
3.60%

3.85%
2.85%
1.70%
2.85%
3.85%

At 31
August
2020
Hampshire

At 31
August
2020
Norfolk

At 31
August
2020
Northamptonshire

At 31
August
2020
Suffolk

At 31
August
2020
Torbay

3.30%
2.30%
1.70%
2.30%
3.30%

2.90%
2.20%
1.70%
2.20%
3.20%

2.70%
2.20%
1.70%
2.20%
3.20%

2.90%
2.20%
1.70%
2.20%
3.20%

3.20%
2.20%
1.65%
2.20%
3.20%
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21 Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis
Approximate monetary increase to the obligation as a result of the following changes in assumptions at 31 August 2021 are set
out below:
At 31
August
2021
£000

At 31
August
2020
£000

Hampshire
0.1% increase in the salary increase rate
0.1% increase in the pension increase rate
0.1% decrease in real discount rate

6
72
81

5
56
64

Northamptonshire
0.1% increase in the salary increase rate
0.1% increase in the pension increase rate
0.1% decrease in real discount rate

15
15

40
40

Torbay
0.1% increase in the salary increase rate
0.1% increase in the pension increase rate
0.1% decrease in real discount rate

1
85
87

1
62
63

Norfolk
0.1% increase in the salary rate
0.1% increase in the pension increase rate
0.1% decrease in real discount rate

1
15
16

3
42
46

Suffolk
0.1% increase in the salary increase rate
0.1% increase in the pension increase rate
0.1% decrease in real discount rate

19
19

56
57

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life
expectations on retirement age 65 are:
At 31
August
2021
Hampshire

At 31
August
2021
Norfolk

At 31
August
2021
Northamptonshire

At 31
August
2021
Suffolk

At 31
August
2021
Torbay

Retiring today
Males
Females

23.1 years
25.5 years

21.9 years
24.3 years

21.7 years
24.1 years

22.1 years
24.5 years

22.7 years
24.0 years

Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

24.8 years
27.3 years

23.2 years
26.2 years

22.8 years
25.8 years

23.2 years
26.4 years

24.0 years
25.4 years

At 31
August
2020
Hampshire

At 31
August
2020
Norfolk

At 31
August
2020
Northamptonshire

At 31
August
2020
Suffolk

At 31
August
2020
Torbay

Retiring today
Males
Females

23.0 years
25.5 years

21.7 years
23.9 years

21.5 years
23.7 years

21.9 years
24.1 years

22.9 years
24.1 years

Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

24.7 years
27.2 years

22.8 years
25.5 years

22.3 years
25.1 years

22.7 years
25.6 years

24.3 years
25.5 years
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The Trust’s share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme and the expected rates of return were:
Fair value
at 31 August
2021
£000

Fair value
at 31 August
2020
£000

Equities
Government Bonds
Property
Corporate Bonds
Cash
Other

2,098
647
262
40
476

1,448
403
185
36
49
371

Total market value of assets

3,523

2,492

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Past service cost
Net interest cost
Total operating charge
Change in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2021
£000

2020
£000

(955)
(45)

(699)
(35)

(1,000)

(734)

2021
£000

2020
£000

At 1 September
Transfer of existing academy
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Employee contributions
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid

5,174
955
91
109
919
33

2,960
836
699
76
93
535
(25)

At 31 August

7,281

5,174

Change in the fair value of the Trust’s share of scheme assets:
2021
£000
At 1 September
Transfer of existing academy
Interest income
Contributions by members
Contributions by the employer
Actuarial gain
Benefits paid
At 31 August

2,492
46
109
377
466
33
3,523

2020
£000
1,461
539
41
93
317
66
(25)
2,492
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22 Related Party Transactions
Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local public and private
sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trust has an interest. All transactions
involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the trust’s financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures. The following related party transactions took place in the period of account:

• Catch22 Multi Academies Trust is sponsored by Catch22 Charity Ltd ("Catch22"), which is also a member of
Catch22 Multi Academies Trust. Catch22 is a registered charity. Chris Wright (CEO of Catch22) is trustee of the
Multi Academies Trust during the year and was provided by and is connected to Catch22.
• During the year Catch22 made payments on behalf of Catch22 Multi Academies Trust, principally in relation to
services it procures for the wider Catch22 group. These included IT equipment and maintenance, and travel and
subsistence costs. In addition, Catch22 provided support services to the academy trust including HR, finance, IT
and facilities management support and members of the senior management team. This support included both
services to support the day to day running of the MAT and opening of new Academies.

• Also during the year the Catch22 Multi Academies Trust provided educational support services to Catch22.
The amounts recharged and the services provided by Catch22 to Catch22 Multi Academies Trust during the year
were:
2021
£000

2020
£000

Services provided by Catch22
Rent paid to Catch22
Payments recharged by Catch22

494
79
573

389
47
436

Services provided by the academy trust to Catch22

316
316

230
230

At the balance sheet date the academy trust owed Catch22 £265,930 (2020: the academy trust owed £18,441).

All of the amounts charged by Catch22 were at cost, in line with the Sponsor Agreement setting out the relationship
between the Trust and Catch22 Charity.

23 Ultimate Parent
The trust's ultimate parent company is Catch22 Charity Limited, corporate trustee of the trust, which is the parent of
both the smallest and largest group of which the trust is a member. It is a charitable company (company number
06577534 and charity number 1124127) registered in England and Wales, to promote opportunities for the
development, education and support of young people in need. Copies of the consolidated financial statements of
Catch22 Charity Limited are available from Companies House.
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24 Transfer of new academies into the Trust
On 1 April 2021 the Austen Academy was opened by the trust. During the period the land and buildings were valued as at 31
August 2021 perfomed by Hampshire County Council Property Services. The value of the land and buildings is as follows.
2021
Transfer in
recognised
£000

2020
Transfer in
recognised
£000

12,460

-

Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings

25 Transfer on Conversion
Fixed assets transferred from the DfE includes the following amounts related to Spires Academy.
On 11 March 2020 the land and buildings of The Spires Academy were transferred to Catch22 Multi Academies Trust from
Northamptonshire County Council, for £nil consideration.
The transfer was accounted for in the comparative period as a combination that is in substance a gift. The land and buildings
transferred were valued at the best estimate of their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate
headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Donations –
transfer from local authority.
During the current period the land and buildings at this school have been revalued following receipt of the land and buildings
valuation as at 31 August 2021 performed by Eddisons. The increase in valuation of land and buildings is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings in respect of prior periods

2021
Transfer in
recognised
£000

2020
Transfer in
recognised
£000

5,158

-

26 Transfer of existing academies into the Trust
On 1 September 2019 The Coppice Spring Academy was transferred to the Trust from the Delta Education Trust. Balances
transferred in are detailed below. Values as reported by the transferring trust were not available for disclosure.
2021
Transfer in
recognised
£000

2020
Transfer in
recognised
£000

-

3,730

Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings
Pensions
Pension scheme assets
Pension scheme liabilities

-

Net assets

539
(836)
3,433

27 Capital Commitments
2021
£000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements

587,010

2020
£000
-
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28 Events after the reporting date
After the balance sheet date, the trust received a Termination Notice from the DfE in respect of Everitt Academy. The
intention is that the school will be transferred to another trust with an anticipated transfer date of April 2022.

29 Comparative Statement of Financial Activities
Restricted
Pension
Funds
£000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities
Funding for the Trust's educational operations

Restricted
General
Funds
£000

Restricted
Fixed Asset
Funds
£000

Total
2020
£000

(297)

-

7,385

7,088

-

10,314

-

10,314

(297)

10,314

7,385

17,402

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations

734

9,938

241

10,913

Total Expenditure

734

9,938

241

10,913

(1,031)

376

7,144

6,489

317

(294)

(23)

-

Other recognised gains/(losses):
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes
Net movement in funds

(469)
(1,183)

82

7,121

(469)
6,020

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

(1,499)

1,203

19,206

18,910

Total funds carried forward

(2,682)

1,285

26,327

24,930

Total Income

Net income
Transfers between funds
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